
Glenn Groundwater Authority 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

225 N Tehama St.,  Wil lows,  CA 95988 │  530.934.6540 

 

 

Meeting of the Glenn Groundwater Authority Executive Committee 

July 27, 2022 │ 1:30 pm 

Location: 225 N. Tehama Street, Willows, CA 95988 

 

Remote Participation Option: 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 

Click here to join the meeting 

Or join by entering a meeting ID 

Meeting ID: 235 777 953 948  

Passcode: kfXBed 

Or call in (audio only) 

+1 323-676-6164,,289336062#   United States, Los Angeles 

Phone Conference ID: 289 336 062# 

Find a local number | Reset PIN 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. *Approval of meeting minutes from January 27, 2021. 

b. *Approval of meeting minutes from January 28, 2022 Colusa Groundwater Authority/Glenn 

Groundwater Authority Joint Executive Committee.  

 

4. PERIOD OF PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public are encouraged to address the GGA Executive Committee on items relevant to the GGA.  

Public comments are limited to no more than 5 minutes.  No action may be taken on public comments. 

 

5. STAFF UPDATES 

 

6. *APPROVE 2022 GGA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING SCHEDULE  

 

7. WATER CONSERVATION CAMPAIGN 

a. Discussion on approach for the water conservation campaign. 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZTFjZTExNGQtOGFkYS00ZDAwLTljZWQtZjQwYjcxNWJiMzEw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22c4b8b9b4-758f-42d1-ab7d-7abbb2b863f9%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22fd30fdc1-bb59-4fdf-aec6-b6acdcba876d%22%7d
tel:+13236766164,,289336062# 
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/2a88a23a-57a4-49cb-91ff-e37e6ba1c580?id=289336062
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/usp/pstnconferencing


Page | 2  

b. *Approve materials related to the water conservation campaign. 

8. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 

9. NEXT MEETING 

 

10. ADJOURN 

 
*Indicates Potential Action Item 
 
A complete agenda packet, including back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at 
225 N Tehama St., Willows, CA 95988.  After posting of this Meeting Agenda, the public may request copies of support 
information for public agenda items listed. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, The Glenn Groundwater Authority will make available to persons 

with a disability disability-related modification or accommodations.  If requested, this document and other agenda 

materials can be made available in an alternative format for persons with a disability who are covered by the Americans 

with Disabilities Act.  Contact Lisa Hunter at 530-934-6540. 

 
CERTIFICATION: Pursuant to Government Code §54954.2 the agenda for this meeting was properly posted on or before 

1:30 pm on July 24, 2022. 

 

 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 2



GGA Executive Committee 
Meeting Packet

July 27, 2022

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 3



Staff Report 

To: GGA Executive Committee 

Agenda Item: 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Date: 7/27/22

 

 

Background 
The meeting minutes from the January 27, 2021 GGA Executive Committee meeting and the January 28, 

2022 CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee meeting have been prepared for review. 

Proposed Recommendation 
Approve meeting minutes from the January 27, 2021 GGA Executive Committee meeting and the 

January 28, 2022 CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee meeting. 

 

Attachments 
• January 27, 2021 draft meeting minutes 

• January 28, 2022 draft meeting minutes 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 4



Glenn Groundwater Authority 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency 

 PO Box 351, Wil lows, CA 95988 │  530.934.6501  

 
MINUTES 

Glenn Groundwater Authority Executive Committee 

January 27, 2021 

1:30 PM   

Teleconference 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders N-29-20 this meeting was conducted by teleconference. The meeting 

was accessible via telephone, computer, smartphone, or tablet and remote participation was highly encouraged.  

 

Committee Members Present: Agency Representing: 

X John Amaro Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District 
X Gary Hansen City of Willows  
X Leslie Nerli Glide Water District 

 

Others in attendance: 

Lisa Hunter, GGA/Glenn County; Valerie Kincaid, GGA Counsel; David Kehn, CalWater/GGA TAC; John Campbell; Julia 

Violich 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

John Amaro called the meeting to order at 1:30 pm.  

2. ROLL CALL 

Lisa Hunter took roll call which is indicated above.  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. Approval of meeting minutes from December 3, 2020 

A motion was made to approve the December 3, 2020 meeting minutes as submitted. 

Motion: Leslie Nerli, Second: Gary Hansen, Vote: Unanimous  

Roll Call Vote 

John Amaro: AYE 

Gary Hansen: AYE 

Leslie Nerli: AYE 

4. PERIOD OF PUBLIC COMMENT 

None.   

5. STAFF UPDATES 

Ms. Hunter stated the annual audit is being reviewed by CliftonLarsonAllen and should be ready for the February 

GGA Board meeting.  She noted that inter-basin coordination is continuing and reports will be given when there 

are updates.   Ms. Hunter and David Kehn, TAC representative, will be working together to tee up discussion and 

recommendation items from the TAC to the GGA Board to facilitate education, discussion, and direction from 

the Board to the TAC.  She mentioned that Management Areas (MA) continues to be a topic of interest and the 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 5



 

 Page | 2 
 

topic will be brought to the Board for discussion.  Ms. Hunter also stated that she is working on gathering the 

on-boarding materials for the new members and hopes to have packets to them next week.  

There were questions and additional discussion regarding MAs.  It was clarified that the Board item would likely 

be a discussion item potentially with direction to the TAC rather than an action item.  Ms. Nerli suggested having 

materials prepared for the Board to walk them through the pros and cons of MAs.  Ms. Hunter shared Davids 

Engineering is preparing a memo and potentially other materials to facilitate Board discussion.  A draft of the 

memo was shared at the January 26, 2020 Colusa Groundwater Authority Board meeting.   

Ms. Hunter shared some common themes of support for MAs such as a desire for local control and protection 

and there is concern with future pressure on surface water allocations that may necessitate an area to pump 

groundwater that did not historically use groundwater.  Ms. Kincaid suggested it would be helpful to understand 

the conditions in the basin in relation to the physical attributes of the basin.  She also mentioned that DWR 

requires a significant amount of information if MAs are developed and the rationale for selecting the MAs.  Ms. 

Hunter also mentioned some think of MAs as a way to more efficiently fund projects and management actions.  

Mr. Amaro noted that some districts are feeling pressure on surface water supplies and they may need to use 

groundwater.  There is a lot of groundwater development in the “white areas”.  The districts want to protect 

what they are recharging.  Ms. Kincaid also noted that if a district decides to create an MA, it does create, by 

default, an area outside of the MA, which is its own MA.  Discussions would need to take place to work through 

that.  

Ms. Nerli asked if MAs could be developed later through an amendment process.  Ms. Kincaid stated GSPs can 

be amended at any time.  There are also five year required updates for GSPs and MAs could be added to that 

process.  Ms. Nerli suggested if MA delineation is unclear, table the discussion and continue with completing the 

GSP and revisit the topic in order to submit the GSP on time. 

6. COLUSA SUBBASIN GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILTY PLAN  

a. Discuss GSP development, activities, and outreach 

b. Receive update on GSP Development Grants (Proposition 1 and Proposition 68) 

c. Receive update on Project Agreements 

Ms. Hunter mentioned the Well Monitoring Pilot Program workshop was held January 25, 2021.  Applications 

are due February 26, 2021.  This program is expected to fund approximately six projects.  The Projects and 

Management Actions (PMA) solicitation form is available on the website.  The consultant team will compile 

responses received and use these submittals to inform the PMA section of the GSP.  All the projects will be 

included in an Appendix in the GSP.  The consulting team has also developed an “Administrative Record” 

tracking sheet.  All comments related to GSP development will be included in this spreadsheet which will be 

available for the Board members and the public to view.  Regular updates will be provided at Board meetings.  

Comments may be discussed further if warranted.  Ms. Hunter notes she did not have significant updates on the 

grants and Project Agreements.  The grant invoice and progress report will be submitted to DWR this month 

(January) by the CGA and she coordinates with Mary Fahey on this.   

7. THE NATURE CONSERVANCY AND DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES MULTI-BENEFIT RECHARGE PROJECT  

a. *Discussion and possible recommendation to the GGA Board on TNC/DWR Multi-benefit Recharge 

Project partnership. 

Mr. Amaro mentioned a presentation on this topic was given at the last GGA Board meeting.   

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 6



 

 Page | 3 
 

Ms. Hunter met with the team yesterday to narrow down potential focus areas by reviewing particular criteria.  

The most promising areas for inclusion in the pilot project are in the Orland-Artois Water District, Glenn-Colusa 

Irrigation District, Glide Water District, and Kanawha Water District areas.  She sent emails to the managers of 

the districts to facilitate an initial conversation.   

Valerie Kincaid concurred the potential project sounds promising and could be a win-win situation.  She 

indicated she had two main questions that should be clarified.  The first relating to CEQA compliance and the 

second regarding water ownership.  She elaborated that recharge is only considered a beneficial use of water if 

it is extracted and put to beneficial use and that recharge is not by itself considered a beneficial use of water in 

California.  There was additional discussion on beneficial uses of water and the complexity of water rights in 

California. There was agreement that there is a lot to consider when thinking about projects such as this.   

Ms. Nerli made a motion to ask the Board for permission for Valerie Kincaid to reach out to TNC and DWR to ask 

questions in order to better evaluate this opportunity.  After further discussion, there was general agreement to 

direct Ms. Kincaid and Ms. Hunter to reach out to TNC and DWR staff to address questions that have been raised 

and to bring the topic back to the Board for further discussion.  Ms. Nerli rescinded her previous motion. 

There was also agreement that if the GGA were to participate in this program the Board needs to have a 

thorough understanding of the program, but a formal agreement between TNC and the GGA was probably not 

necessary. 

8. DISCUSS 2021 GOALS AND PRIORITIES 

Ms. Hunter encouraged the Board members to share any thoughts they have on priorities for this year.  The GSP 

is the top priority, but any guidance on other items to help support the needs of the GGA is appreciated. She 

noted this could be a discussion for today or for a later meeting. 

Ms. Nerli suggested re-addressing this topic at the next meeting with materials to support the discussion, such 

as a schedule and update on the status of the various budgets and agreements.  Mr. Hansen agreed that the GSP 

is number one priority and needs to remain the top priority.  Other items can be brought forward as needed, but 

stick with the simple list of GSP completion.  He cautioned about spreading everyone too thin with so much 

going on and suggested focusing on the GSP and working on other tasks down the road.  Mr. Amaro agreed that 

the GSP is the priority and we need to keep on top of it.  Once the GSP is complete, the other items can be 

discussed.   

9. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Mr. Hansen said he was new to the committee and looks forward to working with everyone.   

Mr. Amaro noted the dry conditions this year and he is concerned with drought impacts and the pressure on the 

groundwater this year.   

10. DISCUSS ADDITIONAL POTENTIAL ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE NEXT GGA BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Mr. Hansen asked if there was anything needed to help the TAC move forward.  Ms. Hunter stated she will be 

working with David Kehn to add potential items to the Board agenda and frame up the relevant discussions. 

No additional items were added. 

11. NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting is scheduled for March 24, 2021 at 1:30 PM.  

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 7



 

 Page | 4 
 

12. ADJOURN  

The meeting was adjourned at 2:32 PM. 

 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 8



 

CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee │ Page 1 

CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee Meeting 

MEETING MINUTES 

January 28, 2022 | 9:00 a.m. 

 

Due to safety concerns and directives from the Governor and Federal Government related to 

COVID-19, 

This meeting was held remotely ONLY.  

 
 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, and Introductions 

John Amaro, Glenn Groundwater Authority Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m.  

In Attendance:  

Committee Members: 

GGA: John Amaro, Gary Hansen  

CGA: Denise Carter, Hilary Reinhard, Darrin Williams 

Other in Attendance: Ashlee Veneman, Grant Carmon (GGA), Mallory Serrao (Provost & 

Pritchard), Jenny Sheer, Joe Turner, Greg Plucker, Brandon Davison (DWR), Holly Reimers, Lisa 

Porta  

2. Period of Public Comment 

No public comment was heard. 

3. Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation  

• Lisa Hunter, GGA Program Manager, stated the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) is 

moving to the implementation phase and this discussion is intended to serve as a catalyst for 

GSA coordination during GSP implementation.   

a. GSA Staffing- Discussion 

• Denise Carter noted that Mary Fahey is no longer with the CGA. Colusa County will no 

longer be providing staffing services to the CGA.  The CGA has formed an ad hoc 

committee and will develop a Program Manager description. The CGA Board is looking 

at options for filling the position including recruitment for its own employee or utilizing 

consultant services. 

b. Outreach and Engagement Support-Discussion 

• Ms. Hunter introduced the item stating that the contract for Consensus and 

Collaboration Program (CCP), sub-consultant to Davids Engineering, will be ending 

soon. She asked if there is a desire for consultant support for outreach and engagement 

activities. Tasks could include social media updates, basin-wide flyers, and agendas for 

joint GSA meetings. 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 9



 

CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee │ Page 2 

• Mr. Amaro asked if these services would be funded through grants or self-funded. Ms. 

Hunter responded that the current grant funds will be expended soon. DWR has a 

Facilitation Support Services (FSS) program that could be applied for with a specific 

scope of work. Otherwise, the outreach support would be self-funded. Ms. Carter added 

that it is necessary to consider what topics need to be communicated to the constituents 

over the next year or two, and suggested drought communications may be an example 

of outreach topics. Ms. Reinhard stated that communication about projects is better 

done by local advocates and further stated facilitation support may not be needed at 

this point.  

• Mr. Amaro supported local outreach rather than facilitation and suggested a possible 

public meeting once every four months to share information about the drought and 

related actions. Gary Hansen supported local outreach and asked if CCP might be 

available on an as-needed basis. He further stated he supports press releases and 

occasional public meetings as well. Ms. Carter suggested checking into a retainer-type 

agreement with CCP.   

• Darrin Williams spoke to the demands on time for board member participation and 

suggested having as point person on staff for the CGA to conduct outreach and engage 

with the public on a regular basis. He supports a local approach to outreach rather than 

a consultant.  There was general agreement with these statements. 

• Ms. Hunter asked if there is interest in pursuing a FSS agreement to help prepare 

outreach items and meetings and provide staff support to the outreach process. Ms. 

Carter supported pursuing FSS. 

• Mr. Hansen stated the City of Willows uses Regional Government Services for assistance 

in finding candidates with specialized skills and encouraged the CGA to consider this 

avenue for filling the Program Manager position. 

c. Annual Reports- Update and Discussion 

• Ms. Hunter stated the Annual Report is being developed by the consultant team and is 

due April 1. The project is on track to be completed on time.  She further stated an 

update on the Annual Report will likely be given at a Joint TAC meeting.  

• Ms. Hunter encouraged discussion on annual reports on a broader scale. A Request for 

Proposals could be issued in the summer in order to have a consultant in place by the 

fall to complete the work by the April 1 deadline.  An agreement could include the 

option to extend for multiple years. Discussion ensued on Annual Report contents, 

timing, and deadlines. It was clarified that Davids Engineering is completing the Water 

Year 2021 Annual Report that is due April 1, 2022.  

d. Funding and Financing Mechanisms- Discussion 

• Ms. Hunter stated funding and financing are critically important for both GSAs and 

there have been commitments to review the funding mechanisms during GSP 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 10



 

CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee │ Page 3 

implementation.  She noted there is a small amount of funding remaining in the grant 

to have one additional meeting with consultant support to outline a roadmap and 

options to consider. An item is being prepared for a consultant presentation at a Joint 

Board meeting to facilitate discussion on this topic.  Additional discussion will take 

place on how the GSAs may choose to move forward. Considerations may include a 

basin-wide approach to funding, each GSA handling its own processes completely, or a 

hybrid where there is coordination on a consistent approach, but each GSA completes 

its own process.  Ms. Hunter encouraged feedback to better frame up the discussion for 

the Joint Board meeting.  Ms. Carter stated the CGA has designated a long-term funding 

ad hoc committee. She emphasized the importance of meeting jointly, and having 

separate GSA discussions, and sharing information between the GSAs. The timeline for 

fees to be included on the county’s tax roll was reviewed, noting an August 10 deadline 

to submit files to the county. 

• Mr. Amaro asked about the timing of meetings and length of time to complete the 

process. Ms. Hunter reviewed the components and stated one year may be a good target 

for how long the process might take. Mallory Serrao confirmed the timeframe, but 

stated additional considerations may affect the length of time needed.   

• Mr. Williams stated the list of projects in the GSP will need to be reviewed to determine 

which projects move forward and which might be the responsibility of CGA and GGA 

which will influence the funding mechanisms. He suggested the need to fine tune the 

budget and consider project costs as well as administrative costs. Ms. Reinhard agreed 

stating the funding of projects is the most complicated part and it is important to know 

the amount of funding needed. She also emphasized the need for outreach. She further 

stated that the Colusa Subbasin is one of the largest in the state and tying the GSAs 

together by using the same funding mechanism might be more complicated and the 

GSAs may lose flexibility. Mr. Williams spoke in favor of special projects being funded 

by beneficiaries of the project. He further spoke to the diversity of the subbasin. Ms. 

Carter spoke of needing to consider general overhead of running agency including 

annual reports and special studies, and also to policy decisions on how special projects 

get paid for, how to determine the beneficiaries of a project, and whether projects are 

funded by the lead agency? Mr. Amaro spoke in favor of focusing discussion on GSA 

administration and some focus on special studies, and that projects should be grant 

funded when possible and funded by the areas benefitting from the project. Discussion 

ensued on structuring special projects to include beneficiaries and how the cost of the 

special project will be recovered. 

e. Next Steps- Discussion 

• Ms. Hunter encouraged discussion on what would be helpful in order to continue 

coordinating, for instance, is there a desire for additional Joint Executive Committee 

meetings. 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 11



 

CGA/GGA Joint Executive Committee │ Page 4 

• Mr. Williams suggested a joint meeting to begin looking at projects in the GSP and 

brainstorm how we might start allocating project costs, assigning beneficiaries, and 

build a roadmap for implementation.  

4. Member Reports and Comments  

• Ms. Carter spoke to the importance of reviewing Projects and Management Actions (PMAs) 
in preparation for the grant funding. Brandon Davison encouraged collectively prioritizing 
the PMAs and know which are the most shovel-ready projects.  Ms. Reinhard asked if only the 
critically over drafted basins are being funded.  Ms. Hunter shared that critically over drafted 
basins are being funded in Round 1 and the Round 2 funding solicitation is expected to be 

available in the Fall of 2022 which the Colusa Subbasin could apply for and spoke in favor of 
beginning to prepare for that application soon. 

• Mr. Amaro summarized that the board needs to meet more often in a joint setting and start 
prioritizing projects and other topics.  

• Mr. Amaro opened the floor for public comments; whereby, no comments were heard. 

5. Adjourn  

• The meeting adjourned at 10:02 a.m.  

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 12



Staff Report 

To: GGA Executive Committee 

Agenda Item: 6. APPROVE 2022 GGA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

SCHEDULE  

Date: 7/27/22

 

 

Background 
In 2021, the GGA Executive Committee was scheduled to meet on the 4th Wednesday of every other 

month. Due to a lack of agenda items, the committee only met one time, in January 2021. Using the 

2021 schedule as a default for the 2022 schedule, three meetings have been cancelled in 2022. The 

committee held a joint meeting with the CGA Executive Committee in January 2022. 

Staff recommends reducing the number of scheduled regular Executive Committee meetings. Special 

meetings may be called as needed.   

Proposed Recommendation 
Approve 2022 GGA Executive Committee Meeting Schedule Option 2.   

Attachments 
• Glenn Groundwater Authority Executive Committee 2022 Meeting Schedule Options (Draft 

7/21/22) 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 13



  Draft 7/21/22 

Glenn Groundwater Authority Executive Committee 
2022 Meeting Schedule 

Option 1 (Note: this was the default option based on the 2021 schedule)  

The GGA Executive Committee will meet generally on the 4th Wednesday every 

other month at 1:30 pm.  Meetings will be held at the Glenn County Planning and 

Community Development Services Agency located at 225 North Tehama Street, 

Willows, CA 95988. Exceptions are noted below.  

 

• January 26, 2022 Cancelled 

• January 28, 2022 (Joint with Colusa Groundwater Authority): Teleconference Only 

• March 23, 2022 Cancelled 

• May 25, 2022 Cancelled 

• July 27, 2022 

• September 28, 2022 

• November 23, 2022 

Option 2 

The GGA Executive Committee will meet generally quarterly on the 4th  Wednesday 

of the month at 1:30 pm.  Meetings will be held at the Glenn County Planning and 

Community Development Services Agency located at 225 North Tehama Street, 

Willows, CA 95988. Exceptions are noted below.  

 

• January 26, 2022 Cancelled 

• January 28, 2022 (Joint with Colusa Groundwater Authority): Teleconference Only 

• March 23, 2022 Cancelled 

• May 25, 2022 Cancelled 

• July 27, 2022 

• October 26, 2022 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 14



Staff Report 

To: GGA Executive Committee 

Agenda Item: 7. WATER CONSERVATION CAMPAIGN  

Date: 7/27/22

 

 

Background 
At the March 16, 2022 meeting, the GGA Board requested a discussion item to consider supporting or 

developing a water conservation campaign or another method of encouraging or requiring water 

conservation, particularly in areas experiencing significant groundwater level declines. This could include 

an educational or awareness campaign or specific groundwater extraction limitation requirements. 

At the May 9, 2022 meeting, the Board discussed potential options and provided general support for 

outreach related to water conservation. The Board directed staff to continue exploring this option and 

bring recommendations to the Board for further discussion and/or action. 

At the June 14, 2022 meeting, staff provided information to the GGA including considerations and 

examples of outreach materials.  At that meeting, there was general consensus that an educational or 

awareness campaign focused on encouraging water conservation was more appropriate than 

mandatory actions at this time.  A request was also made to more explicitly include agricultural water 

use conservation in outreach materials.   

At the July 11, 2022 meeting, the Board continued discussion on approaches to encouraging water 

conservation. It was generally agreed that a Press Release may be the most efficient and effective route. 

Other options could include social media or other electronic means. The idea to focus on the mission of 

the GSP and what the GGA is doing resonated with many members.  

Direction was given to the Executive Committee to finalize the materials for the water conservation 

campaign.  

Proposed Recommendation 
Approve the materials related to the water conservation campaign.  

Attachments 
• Draft Press Release 

• Draft website mock-up 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 15



 

 

Water Conservation Press Release DRAFT 

The Glenn Groundwater Authority (GGA) is encouraging you to help our groundwater basin by conserving 

water. Conserve at home. Conserve at work. Conserve on the farm. We are experiencing a significant 

drought and we need your help. Eight of the last ten years have been classified as below normal, dry, or 

critical based on the Sacramento Valley Water Year Hydrologic Classification. The Northern Sierra 

Precipitation 8-Station Index states our region is only at 79% of average precipitation this year. The U.S. 

Drought Monitor shows over 97% of Glenn County is in Extreme Drought. 

The GGA is the Groundwater Sustainability Agency managing the Glenn County portion of the Colusa 

Subbasin. This covers the area generally south of Stony Creek, east of the coast ranges, west of the 

Sacramento River, and north of the Glenn-Colusa County line.  In coordination with the Colusa 

Groundwater Authority, the GGA submitted the Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 

as required by the Sustainability Groundwater Management Act in January 2022.  The GSP is a long-term, 

comprehensive, dynamic plan that will guide how groundwater is managed in the Colusa Subbasin. The 

goals of the GSP are the maintain locally-managed sustainable groundwater resources to preserve and 

enhance the economic viability, social well-being, and culture of all who use groundwater, while avoiding 

undesirable results. What constitutes an “undesirable result” is quantified in the GSP for the required 

sustainability indicators which include, for example, groundwater levels and land subsidence. Conditions 

are monitored throughout the subbasin and measured relative to the criteria set within the GSP.   

Basin conditions are evaluated at least annually during the development of the required Annual Report.  

The Annual Report submitted in April 2022 indicated that groundwater levels have generally dropped 

since 2020, especially around Orland and Artois. Since 2015, land subsidence has occurred in various 

areas, but most prominent between Orland and Artois with up to -1.5 feet of vertical displacement. It is 

unclear how much of this subsidence is permanent.  

How is the GGA helping during drought? The GSP includes a list of Projects and Management Actions that 

can be implemented to help reach and maintain sustainable groundwater conditions. The GGA is 

evaluating these projects and longer-term options to enhance drought resiliency. Immediate term 

solutions are being sought by Glenn County, cities, and local water providers. If you are experiencing water 

supply issues, be sure to report your issues to Glenn County or the California Department of Water 

Resources. There may be an assistance program that fits your circumstances. The link to report water 

insecurities can be found on our website.  The GGA is also pursuing planning for groundwater recharge 

projects, has added additional monitoring for land subsidence, and is preparing for a grant opportunity 

that could provide funds for on-the-ground projects.   

The GGA supports the actions taken by local municipal water suppliers to encourage water conservation. 

The City of Orland implemented Stage 2 of the Water Conservation and Shortage Contingency Plan 

effective May 1, 2022. This includes limiting watering lawn and landscape to 3 days per week between 8 

p.m. and 8 a.m. and implements a Stage 2 tiered rate structure. Cal Water, serving residents in the City of 

Willows, implemented Stage 2 of Cal Water’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan on May 23, 2022. 

Restrictions include limitations on outdoor watering to 2 days per week between 6 p.m. and 8 a.m. and 

increased water waste penalties.   

If you are a resident outside of these water service areas, we encourage you to implement a limited 

watering schedule and to reduce water waste. Fix leaks. Wash vehicles only with a hose that has a shutoff 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 16



 

 

nozzle or similar device. Do not put water on driveways and sidewalks, unless for health and safety 

purposes. Do not water outdoor landscape within 48 hours after measurable rainfall. Be creative in finding 

your own solutions! 

Local agricultural producers have also been affected by drought. Surface water allocations have been 

significantly reduced or eliminated across the subbasin, with some receiving no surface water at all.  In 

many cases, annual crops have been fallowed or fewer acres planted while trees and other permanent 

crops are being irrigated sparingly. Agricultural water users are similarly encouraged to utilize best 

management practices and conserve water as much as possible. Utilize your surface water supplies if you 

have them and minimize groundwater pumping. Coordinate with neighbors, when possible, to minimize 

possible well interference. Visit our website for links to additional resources. 

We challenge you to do your part in helping to conserve our precious water resources. No matter what 

you use water for, we are all in this together and every drop counts! Visit our website at XX to access 

additional tips, information, and resources. 

 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 17



GGA drought resources webpage mock up 

The Glenn Groundwater Authority (GGA) is encouraging you to help our groundwater basin by conserving water. Conserve at 

home. Conserve at work. Conserve on the farm. We are experiencing a significant drought and we need your help.  We challenge 

you to do your part in helping to conserve our precious water resources. No matter what you use water for, we are all in this to-

gether and every drop counts! 

Below are links to information and resources that may be useful to you as we all navigate through these dry conditions.  

Press Release (link to Press Release when released) 

Glenn County Drought Webpage 

Glenn County Well Incident Report (file a report)   

Department of Water Resources (DWR) Dry Well Reporting System (file a report) 

Department of Water Resources (DWR) Drought page  

Save our Water  

Cal Water, Willows 

City of Orland 

University of California Cooperative Extension Irrigation and Water Resources 

Mobile Irrigation Lab 

USDA Drought 

USDA Water Conservation 

NRCS Conservation Programs 

Smart Water Use on Your Farm or Ranch  (USDA. Sustainable Agriculture Research and             

Education) 

California’s Groundwater Live 

SGMA Data Viewer 

Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP)  

Colusa Subbasin Annual Report (Water Year 2021) 

Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan and Updates on Current Groundwater Condi-

tions (Spring 2022) (link to flyer) 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 18

https://www.countyofglenn.net/dept/sheriff/office-emergency-services/drought
https://survey123.arcgis.com/share/4f95e3c778264603bf95b605215ab735?portalUrl=https://countyofglenn.maps.arcgis.com
https://mydrywell.water.ca.gov/report/
https://water.ca.gov/water-basics/drought
https://saveourwater.com/en/How-to-Save-Water/Around-the-House
https://www.calwater.com/alerts/willows-drought-information/
https://www.cityoforland.com/
https://ceglenn.ucanr.edu/Irrigation_and_Water_Resources/
https://www.tehamacountyrcd.org/mobile-irrigation-lab
https://www.usda.gov/topics/disaster-resource-center/drought
https://www.nal.usda.gov/legacy/afsic/water-conservation
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/national/programs/
https://www.sare.org/wp-content/uploads/Smart-Water-Use-on-Your-Farm-or-Ranch.pdf
https://sgma.water.ca.gov/CalGWLive/
https://sgma.water.ca.gov/webgis/?appid=SGMADataViewer#gwlevels
https://sgma.water.ca.gov/portal/gsp/preview/92
https://sgma.water.ca.gov/portal/gspar/preview/135
https://saveourwater.com/en/How-to-Save-Water/Around-the-House


From California’s Groundwater Live 

Depth to Groundwater 

On GGA homepage: insert image with embedded link to the drought resources page, can change picture occasion-

ally to share additional tips 

Click the image above for additional tips, information, and drought resources 

GGA Executive Committee
July 27, 2022

Page 19

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/b3886b33b49c4fa8adf2ae8bdd8f16c3

	22.07.21 GGA_Exec Staff Report Item 3 minutes.docx
	Staff Report
	Background
	Proposed Recommendation
	Attachments

	22.07.21 GGA_Exec Staff Report Item 6 schedule.docx
	Staff Report
	Background
	Proposed Recommendation
	Attachments

	22.07.21 GGA_Exec Staff Report Item 7 water conservation.docx
	Staff Report
	Background
	Proposed Recommendation
	Attachments


